






























Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC 
 

 

Partial Exemption Permit Application to Conduct Blasting Activities 

for the 

Calendar Year 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted to: 

City of Double Horn, Texas 

April 2nd, 2020 

 

 

 



Spicewood Crushed Stone LLC 
3490 FM 78 

McQueeney, TX 78123 

Phone (830) 557-5020 

Fax (830) 557-5014 

  

April 2nd, 2020 

 

 

City of Double Horn, Texas 

102 Double Horn Trl, 

Double Horn, TX 78669 

 

Subject: Partial Exemption Permit to Conduct Blasting for the Year 2020 

 

Dear Mayor Sereno: 

 

Enclosed is Spicewood Crushed Stone’s (SCS) complete application for a partial exemption 

permit to conduct blasting at our Spicewood operation for the year 2020. 

 

As there is no established standard for this application, we have tried to be as comprehensive as 

possible. 

 

We wish to use this process to remove any misconceptions regarding SCS’s planned operations 

and to develop a sustainable program that protects both SCS and our neighbors’ property rights. 

 

As you know, all of our relevant permits were in place and our development plans established 

prior to the formation of the municipality and the city’s blasting ordinance.  Our quarry plan 

voluntarily incorporated numerous design features aimed at making our operation less intrusive 

to the surrounding residential properties.  Concepts such as increased setbacks, natural vegetative 

space, distance of rock crushing equipment from residences, and construction of visual/noise 

buffering landscape berms, etc. do not add to the bottom line; however, were incorporated into 

this operation to demonstrate goodwill in our effort to be a good neighbor.  In addition, these 

design decisions stranded valuable reserves, which by right we could have extracted. 

 

The regulatory standards contained in the Ordinance are industry best practice; however, the 

Ordinance permitting processes imposes additional administrative and bureaucratic costs upon 

our operations.  Our goal is to work collaboratively with the City to help streamline the process 

and achieve the desired results for all parties. 

 

As I am sure you are aware, this Blasting Ordinance was in large part copied from Garden Ridge, 

Texas.  The Garden Ridge Ordinance was crafted in response to the Hanson Sertex Quarry.  That 

quarry has consistently ranked as one of the largest quarries in the United States and its 

operations are both qualitatively and quantitively different from the Double Horn/Spicewood 

situation. 

 

While, we understand this ordinance has the force of law, we request operational flexibility to 

ensure compliance.  The information provided is our good faith effort to provide sufficient 

information to address the permit requirements.  Geology, weather and other uncontrollable 

events may change operational details.  In summary, this ordinance lays out standards but it 

should be left to the permit holder to dictate the means and methods to ensure compliance.   



 

Once the current health crisis passes, we look forward to having additional face to face meetings. 

 In the meantime, should you need any additional information or have any questions feel free to 

contact me by phone or email. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Matthew Dalrymple, P.E.  



NOTE TO REVIEWER 

This permit application is formatted to contain information requested by Ordinance No. 2019-

ORD015.  Where applicable, a reference citation is added to clarify which part of the ordinance 

is being addressed. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Ordinance No. 2019-ORD015 Attachment A Request for Partial Exemption Permit 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 – Property Identification 

Attachment 2 – Property Survey 

Attachment 3 – Description of Operations 

Attachment 4 – Designation of Blasting Company 

Attachment 5 – Buckley Powder Co License 

Attachment 6 – Third Party Monitoring 

Attachment 7 – Blasting Compliance 

Attachment 8 – Mitigation Plan 

Attachment 9 – Mitigation of Perceived Negative Effects 

Attachment 10 – Proof of Insurance 

Attachment 11 – Dispute Resolution Process 

Attachment 12 – Educational Materials 

Attachment 13 – Other Permits 



Request for Partial Exemption Permit to Conduct Blasting 
 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 and 13 of 18 - Attachment A) 

 

1. The Name of the Property Owner. 

Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC. 

 

2. The Name of the Applicant, if other than the Property Owner. 

Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC. 

 

3. Written Designation of the Applicant/Designee by the Property Owner, granting authority 

of the Applicant/Designee to act on behalf of the Property Owner. 

See Attachment 4.  Blasting will be conducted by Buckley Powder Co. 

 

4. The name of the Applicant/Designee’s representative for purposes of the application (if 

the Application/Designee is not a natural person). 

See Item 6 below for contact information for Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC and 

Buckley Powder Co. 

 

5. Copies of any state or federal licenses and permits authorizing the Applicant to possess 

and use explosives. 

See Attachment 5 for Buckley Powder Co’s Federal Explosive License/Permit. 

 

6. Complete Contact Information, including name, address, phone number, facsimile 

number and email address for the City’s use in processing the application.  The contact 

information provided shall be used for all communications in connection with the 

processing of the application and the operation. 

 

Applicant:  Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC 

Physical Address:  

5550 E Hwy 71  

Spicewood, TX 78669 

Mailing Address: 

3490 FM 78 

McQueeney, TX 78123 

Phone: 830-557-5020 

Contact(s): Mr. Matthew Dalrymple, Vice President 

Email: admin@spicewoodcrushedstone.com 

 

Blasting Company: Buckley Powder Co. 

mailto:admin@spicewoodcrushedstone.com


1401 Weir Ranch Road 

Georgetown, TX 78628 

Phone: 512-869-0287 

Contact(s): Mr. Steve David, Health and Safety Manager, Mr. 

Riley Pumphrey, General Manager, Mr. Taylor Willis, 

Technical Representative, Mr. Jason Mims, Account Manager. 

 

7. A full description of the designee’s legal and factual relationship to the property(ies) 

upon which the Blasting shall be conducted. 

Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC is the Proper Owner and Permit Applicant.  

Buckley Powder Co will be hired by Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC to perform 

blasting for its Spicewood quarry operation for the calendar year 2020. 

 

8. A Detailed Description of the Operations to be Conducted. 

  See Attachment 3. 

 

9. The period of time the anticipated use shall continue. 

The use will continue for the life of the mine. 

 

10. Any supplemental information requested and deemed pertinent by the Mayor. 

Specifically addressed in other sections. 

 

11. Any supplemental information the designee deems pertinent prior to City Council 

Consideration. 

Specifically addressed in other sections. 

 

Additional Information: 

 

1. Identify all real property where the activity of blasting shall be conducted by street 

address (if any) and legal description.  Any property not listed will not be included in any 

permit, if authorized.  If multiple properties are to be considered, and some are not within 

the City limits, but are within the City’s extra-territorial jurisdictional limits, please 

include each property in the list but designate the property with the comment: “ETJ 

Property”. 

The following properties are included in this permit application and are where 

blasting operations are to occur.   

 

Parcel No: 69606 

Owner Name: Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC 



Legal Description: ABS A0714 WM. Roberts, Tract ABSTS 714, 264, Beings Tr 1 & 

2, 180.52 Acres 

Address: 5500 E Hwy 71 TX 

 

Parcel No: 108647 

Owner Name: Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC 

Legal Description: ABS A0714 WM. Roberts, Tract Being ABSTS 714, 264, 561., 

100.74 Acres. 

Address: 5500 E Hwy 71 TX. 

 

See Attachment 1 for a figure showing the location of these properties. 

 

2. A plan view drawing completed under seal by a licensed professional surveyor or civil 

engineer to appropriate scale, showing all properties listed for inclusion into the Partial 

Exemption Permit for Blasting. 

See Attachment 2. 

 

3. If you are not the owner of the real property, a letter from the Owner Executed before a 

notary, that they are the owner of the property and authorize the Permit Holder to act on 

their behalf in relation to blasting activities on the property. 

N/A.  Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC is the Property Owner and Permit Applicant. 

 

4. Documentation and facts demonstrating that the Requestor’s Blasting operation is going 

to be conducted in a manner that minimizes its related adverse impact on surrounding 

properties through compliance with the Ordinance.  Please specifically list all steps taken, 

such as distance limitations related to adjacent properties, use of berms and any dust and 

noise remediation efforts, etc. 

See Attachments 7, 8, and 9. 

 

5. Documentation and facts demonstrating efforts by designee to protect and mitigate the 

perceived negative adverse effects such activity has on real property values, public safety, 

health and welfare interests, including the quality of life within the City, neighboring 

properties and the public. 

See Attachments 7, 8, and 9. 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 of 18. Attachment A. Identify all real property where the activity of blasting shall be 

conducted by street address (if any) and legal description.  Any property not listed will not be included in any 

permit, if authorized.  If multiple properties are to be considered, and some are not within the City limits, but are 

within the City’s extra-territorial jurisdictional limits, please include each property in the list but designate the 

property with the comment: “ETJ Property”.) 

 



FIGURE 1.1  - PROPERTIES TO BE INCLUDED IN SPICEWOOD CRUSHED STONE'S BLASTING PERMIT APPLICATION



ATTACHMENT 2 

PROPERTY SURVEY 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 of 18 A plan view drawing completed under seal by a licensed professional surveyor 

or civil engineer to appropriate scale, showing all properties listed for inclusion into the Partial Exemption Permit 

for Blasting.) 

 





ATTACHMENT 3 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 of 18 Attachment A Item Number 8.  Included a detailed description of the operation 

to be conducted.) 

 



Detailed Description of the Operation 
 

Blasting will be conducted as a result of quarrying operations.  Limestone excavated from 

blasting will be used for the production of crushed stone and construction aggregates.   

 

The specific blasting techniques are detailed in the following document provided by Buckley 

Powder Co.  Further detailed information is provided under other sections of this application in 

accordance with the Ordinance requirements. 

 

 
 



 1 

 

Buckley Powder Co. 
A Dyno Nobel Distributor 

___________________________________________________________________________                                     
P.O. Box 1358 Georgetown, TX 78628  USA  Telephone 512-869-0287  Fax: 512-819-9906 

 

 

 

TO: City of Double Horn 
 
CC: Riley Pumphrey, Jason Mims, Taylor Willis, Joe Crownover 
 
From: Steve Davis 
           Health & Safety Manager 
           Buckley Powder Company 
 
Date: December 10th, 2019 
 
Included with this packet is a copy of the Buckley Powder Blasting Standard Operating 
Procedures. This document is very specific as to the proper procedures required to provide 
optimum results for our customer while also providing a safe environment for Buckley Powder 
employees, those employed by our customer, and the surrounding community. All Buckley 
Powder blasters are required to attend at least 40 hours of classroom training and testing to 
ensure they have a complete understanding of these procedures. Along with classroom 
training, they are provided extensive field training before ever actually being assigned duties as 
a lead blaster.  
 
Also included is a copy of Open Pit Blaster Training. This course provides a thorough 
understanding of the fragmentation process and how to minimize vibration and air over 
pressure which may affect the surrounding community. Blasters are taught all calculations 
necessary to safely obtain the production goals of the customer while minimizing the 
environmental effects. Once again they must pass written tests in the classroom and are 
audited in the field to ensure they are following these calculations and procedures. As new and 
improved techniques are introduced to the industry, blasters are brought in to be trained on 
the new information as well as refreshed on previous topics. 
 
Buckley Powder now blasts approximately 45,000,000 tons of rock per year in the 
Spicewood/Central Texas area. Our blasters and technical staff are very familiar with the 
geological abnormalities which must be addressed to keep environmental effects to a 
minimum.     
 
Included on the next page is an illustration of a typical bench to be blasted and the terminology 
for many of the parameters considered in the design of the blast. 
 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

We teach our blasters that there are four things which occur when rock is blasted : 
 

• The rock is broken or fragmented 

• There is a heaving affect 

• Vibration is created 

• Air overpressure is created 
 



 3 

If a blast is properly designed, the energy of the explosives will be used to do the first two in the 
list and there will be less energy left to create vibration and air overpressure. Thus the correct 
pattern to properly distribute the energy through the rock is the first important consideration. 
We know from experience how many pounds of explosives per cubic yard or ton of rock 
(powder factor) will give satisfactory fragmentation. If we under load a blast, it may actually 
create higher vibration. Extensive research calculations have been developed which aids in 
predicting vibration at a given distance based on the pounds of explosives detonated at 8 
millisecond intervals. Based on the two above factors a blast pattern can be determined. 
 
Laying out the blast pattern 
As illustrated in the diagram, previous blasting will create a face which many times will be 
irregular; depending on the local geology. A drone and photogrammetry software will be used 
to scan every face and determine at what distance the holes should be placed from the crest to 
have proper burden (amount of rock in front of the hole). There will be times when geological 
abnormalities may be observed and require the holes to have additional burden placed on 
them in order to minimize any venting of energy through the various seams; which may 
increase air overpressure. If this is necessary the spacing between holes in this row will be 
reduced to maintain the proper powder factor. The location of each hole is recorded by the 
blaster. 
 
Drilling 
The driller will be given documentation of the pattern. This will include a diagram of the hole 
locations. The required depth of the holes will be indicated. Depths are determined from the 
initial data from the model produced from drone software. In order to properly break the rock 
at the bottom of the hole, the holes will be drilled slightly deeper than the actual bench height. 
In areas of vibration concern, this subdrill should be kept to a minimum. Excessive subdrill tends 
to increase vibration due to the over confinement in this area of the blast. The driller will be 
asked to provide a log of each hole. These logs will provide information concerning variations in 
geology; with the depths of these variations noted. This is very important data which aids the 
blaster in making determinations on how the hole should be loaded. 
 
Loading the blast pattern 
Before the blast is loaded, the three dimensional model produced from photogrammetry 
software will be used. This model allows the exact location of each hole to be surveyed. This 
model gives a real time view of the face and bench as well as measurement tools for further 
examination of any irregularities. Various reports will be generated from the data, which will 
aid the blaster in determining what must be done to eliminate problems (examples included at 
the end). The most important of these reports are the actual profiles of each front row 
borehole. These profiles show the exact burden in front of the hole. The software also produces 
a 3D minimum burden report.  This report searches the area in between the holes on each side 
of the selected hole for the minimum burden. With these reports in hand, the blaster will 
visually examine the face one more time and make notes on the print outs of any variations in 
the loading which should take place. 
 
All holes will be checked for proper depth. If any have excessive subdrill which may increase 
vibration, they will be backfilled to the proper depth. Detonators and cast boosters will be 
placed in the holes as needed and the hole will be loaded with bulk explosives. The blaster will 
monitor the rise of the product in the hole. If there any abnormalities such as cracks and voids 



 4 

the powder will stop rising and the blaster will immediately stop to address the issue. In most 
cases an inert material such as crushed stone will be placed in this area of the borehole to avoid 
the accumulation of excess explosives. Trucks are equipped with meters as an added check to 
ensure the proper amount of explosives is being placed in each hole. In the cases where a full 
column may be too large to maintain the desired vibration level; the load in the hole may be 
divided into smaller charges separated by inert material. These smaller charges will be timed to 
detonate separately to reduce vibration. If seams of softer material or clay have been noted on 
drill logs or observed by the blaster as he inspects the face; inert material will be placed in that 
area of the column to prevent venting which may increase air overpressure and noise. The 
powder column will be stopped at a predetermined distance from the top of the hole. This is 
called the stemming area and will be filled with crushed stone to create confinement at the 
surface. 
 
Electronic Detonators 
The development of electronic detonators has greatly improved the ability of our industry to 
reduce vibration from blasting. The accuracy of these detonators has allowed us to be very 
predictive as to our end results. Software has been developed which allows us to blast one 
hole, collect the vibration data; apply that data to a multiple hole scenario; and with a fair 
amount of accuracy predict what the results will be from that blast. The software we have 
allows us to enter the exact parameters of a particular blast pattern, and see what the vibration 
should be based of various timing sequences. Though our vibration levels are never close to a 
level which will do damage to a structure, we can many times find a sequence which is less 
perceivable and acceptable to the community. 
 
Conclusion 
There are few places left where our customers have not had developments build around them. 
Buckley Powder has been very successful helping those customers deal with community 
concerns. We take great pride in our education program for our personnel concerning safety 
and technology. If you have further questions concerning our procedures, please contact us. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 

 
 
 
View of Burden Profiles and blast pattern from photogrammetry drone surveying software. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 6 
Profile of a blasthole. 3D minimum Burden is covering the entire area between holes. 



ATTACHMENT 4 

DESIGNATION OF BLASTING COMPANY 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 of 18 Attachment A Item Number 3. Include written designation by the Property 

Owner granting authority of the Designee to act on behalf of the Property Owner.) 



Spicewood Crushed Stone LLC 
3490 FM 78 

McQueeney, TX 78123 

Phone (830) 557-5020 

Fax (830) 557-5014 

  

April 2nd, 2020 

 

 

City of Double Horn, Texas 

102 Double Horn Trl, 

Double Horn, TX 78669 

 

Subject: Designation of Third-Party Blasting Company 

 

Dear Mayor Sereno: 

 

Buckley Powder Co will be hired by Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC to perform blasting at our 

Spicewood quarry for the calendar year 2020. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Matthew Dalrymple, P.E.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





ATTACHMENT 5 

Federal Explosive License for Buckley Powder Co. 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 12 of 18 Attachment A Item Number 5.  Include copies of any state or federal licenses 

and permits authorizing the Applicant to possess and use explosives.) 









ATTACHMENT 6 

THIRD PARTY MONITORING 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 8 and 9 of 18.  Section 6 a. Third Party Monitoring) 



Third Party Monitoring 
 

We propose to utilize Integrated Geotechnical Solutions, Inc. (IGS) as the independent third-

party monitoring expert.  Their qualifications are included in this attachment.   

 

SCS shall bear the cost of this monitoring.  The payment methods outlined in the Ordinance are 

cumbersome and will result in cash flow problems for both the City and the independent third-

party monitor.  We propose to pay this directly, and request a waiver to do so.  To streamline the 

process to ensure against disruptions to our operations, we propose to directly schedule with IGS. 

 

IGS shall submit instrument calibration certifications and raw seismic, air, and noise data 

directly from the monitoring instruments to the City of Double Horn with a copy to SCS.  This 

will ensure data integrity.  Data will be presented in a form that can then be posted for public 

inspection at City Hall or could be uploaded to the City’s website by City staff. 

 

Monitoring Locations are shown on Figure 6.1 included in this attachment.  Per the Ordinance 

requirements, SCS proposes installing six seismographs, two noise monitors, and two air 

particulate monitors.   

 

As shown on Figure 6.1, the monitors are to be placed at the SCS/Double Horn Subdivision 

property boundary.  These locations are suggestions only; we will extrapolate data from our 

property line to the nearest residences. Subject to the Ordinance requirements regarding number 

of monitors (min 6/max 9) the City may designate alternate locations.   

 

All monitoring instruments will be calibrated per the manufacturer’s recommendations, which is 

once a year.  All equipment will be returned to the manufacturer for calibration.   

 

Product sheets for the seismographs, noise monitors, and air particulate monitors are included in 

this attachment. 

 



Legend:

Property Line

Figure 6.1 - Monitoring Locations

Air Particulate Monitors

Air Overpressure/Vibration Monitors

Noise Monitor

Note: 

Monitoring locations shown are suggested
locations.  Monitors can be moved and can be
located elsewhere if requested by the City or
neighboring residences.  Subject to scheduling
requirements as to not interfere with Spicewood
Crushed Stone's operations.



W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

Integrated Geotechnical Solutions, Inc. (IGS) is a 
leading provider of monitoring systems, consultation 
and risk management solutions. With offices across 
North America, our services have been used in the 
construction, aggregate, subway, civil engineering, 
historic structures, mining and oil and gas exploration 
industries. 

Since 2005, we have been delivering solutions that 
exceed our client’s expectations. We unite with our 
clients to supply timely and innovatively designed 
solutions while emphasizing quality and cost. Contact 
us today to find out what we can do for you!

ABOUT US

> On-Site & Remote Monitoring
> Vibration Monitoring
> Noise Monitoring
> Geotechnical Monitoring
> Dust Monitoring
> Weather Monitoring
> Settlement Monitoring
> Automated Total Stations
> Blast Design & Consultation Services
> Seismic Monitoring
> Site Risk Assessments
> Pre- & Post-Condition Documentation
> Public Relations & Expert Testimony
> Water Well Analysis
> Instrumentation Sales & Rentals

SERVICES

AUTHORIZED DISTRIBUTORS



W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

Hilltop Quarry was experiencing 
high PPV levels. After installing 
an advanced seismograph, IGS 
discovered that it was a timing 
issue. We made recommendations 
to the timing which reduced the 
PPV by 40% and they were able 
to remove one of the decks from 

each hole in the blast.

Midlothian Quarry

IGS installed and monitored 20 
vibration monitors in adjacent 
buildings and NYCTA subway tunnel 
for five years during excavation, 
blasting, and construction of this 
88-story, mixed-use tower, what is 
to become the tallest residential 
building in the world and second 
tallest skyscraper in the United 

States when complete in 2020.

Central Park Tower Yukon 3D

Provided vibration monitoring 
of vibroseis trucks. IGS had 7 
personnel on-site to ensure 
the customer stayed within the 
vibration criteria of 0.35 in/s. 
Readings, source points, location 
and distance data was collected 
digitally in the field and uploaded 
in real-time to a web-based data 

hosting platform.

IGS assisted with the installation 
of a remote monitoring array of 
5 vibration monitors, 25 wireless 
tilt meters, 75 wireless crack 
meters, 111 3D prisms, and 5 total 
stations to conduct a long-term 
study of the world’s first massive 
reinforced concrete structure and 
first large permanent college 

sports arena.

Harvard Stadium

IGS conducted pre-/post-condition 
documentation and monitored 34 
vibration systems in the adjacent 
subway tunnels, stations, and 
vent shafts during demolition, 
excavation, and construction of 
the 24-story, tower foundation.  
This megaproject is considered 
one of the most significant urban 

renewal developments in NYC.

Essex Crossing Magellan Pipeline

The quarry operator wanted to get 
500,000 tons of rock within 200 feet 
of a high pressure transmission 
pipeline. IGS calculated a max 
pounds per delay to remain under 
the 2.0 in/s. With readings right on 
where we calculated, the blasting 
contractor was able to remove 
decks in the hole and add a row to 

future blasts.



Since 2005, Integrated Geotechnical Solutions, Inc. (IGS) has 
been  delivering   results   that exceed our client’s expectations. 

We work alongside your operation, blasting company, local 
property owners and the municipality to deliver the best 

possible solution, while staying within local and state 
regulations. With offices across North America, our 

team will work to custom design and rapidly deploy 
a solution, using the most advanced technology.  

> Vibration Monitoring > Remote Monitoring > Site Risk Assessments

> Air Overpressure Monitoring > Signature Hole Analysis > Public Relations

> Noise Monitoring > Blast Design > Expert Testimony

> Fugitive Dust Monitoring > Pre- & Post-Blast Surveys > Damage Claim Evaluation

> Weather Stations > Lightning Detection > Data Reporting

W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

QUARRIES
& MINES



W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

Our Service

Integrated Geotechnical Solutions’ monitoring services make data collection simple and reliable, so 
you can be sure that you are always within compliance regulations. Your operation will receive the 
seismic readings by email or text within minutes of the blast, often before the all clear has been 
given. 

Our philosophy is to be PROACTIVE, not reactive. We will work with your team to discuss and provide 
recommendations on blast optimization strategies, public relations and best practice solutions for 
dealing with complaints. We will also work with local property owners to raise awareness about 
blasting, ease tensions and reduce damage related claims.

Our extensive product offering allows us to custom design a solution that fits your needs. We offer 
equipment to record everything from vibration and air overpressure to wind direction, dust and 
noise. Our system is scalable and designed to adapt to your operation as it evolves. 

On-site monitoring is typically 
performed in remote locations 
where access to cell  service 
is limited, for operations who 

blast one to two times per 
quarter or less and for public 

relations to show property 
owners in real-time the effects 

of blasting.

On-Site Monitoring

Our remote monitoring 
systems are enclosed in 

rugged, waterproof, metal 
enclosures. Solar and battery 

power limit monitoring 
interruptions. Data transfer is 
automatic with near real-time 
warning or exceedance alerts. 

Remote Monitoring Data Collection

Data from remote monitoring 
units is automatically 

collected and transmitted to a 
secure, redundant data center 
and secure hosting website. 
For ultimate flexibility, data 

can be sorted, compared, 
exported,  displayed on 

dynamic criteria graphs and 
shown on Google Earth™. 



BLAST DESIGN
& CONSULTATION

Integrated Geotechnical Solutions, Inc. (IGS) works alongside 
your operation and blasting company to improve the overall 

design of your blasts. Our services lead to a decrease in 
costs, an increase to productivity at the crusher through 

improved fragmentation and a decrease in the impact 
to surrounding communities.  With offices across 

North America, our team will work to custom design 
and rapidly deploy a solution that fits your needs.

W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

> Fragmentation > Timing Sequence > Excessive Subdrill

> Frequency > Signature Hole Validation > Nonel Scatter

> PPV Reduction > Blast Design > Blast Efficiencies

> Cost Savings > Electronic Detonator Validation > Fines Reduction

Key Areas of Focus



W W W . I G S - I N C . C O M   ·   S A L E S @ I G S - I N C . C O M

Working with your blasting 
company, we will ensure that 

the energy in your blast is 
being used efficiently. Using 
seismic analysis, we are able 
to eliminate holes and decks 
in the blast, while limiting 
the impact on surrounding 

communities.

Saves You Money

No two seismographs are 
created equal and IGS only 
works with the best. The 

Minimate Pro™️ by Instantel® 
can record more samples 
per second than any other 

seismograph on the market.  
This resolution allows us to 
make informed suggestions 

on how to improve the 
efficiencies of your blast.

Advanced Technology Exceptional Service

We do more than deliver a 
service. We work alongside 

your operation, blasting 
company, local property 

owners and the municipality, 
creating a collaborative 

environment, to deliver the 
best possible solution for you.

Integrated Geotechnical Solutions’ analysis service deploys one to two technically advanced 
seismographs, the Minimate Pro6™️ by Instantel®, behind an active face. These seismographs 
record event detail at 65,000 samples per second — significantly higher than the industry 
average of 1,024 samples per second. This gives us further insight into your event data, where 
we can now see how the energy in the blast is being used, the efficacy of timing delays, hole-to-
hole and row-to-row interactions and where the maximum peak particle velocities (PPV) occur. 

With over 50 years of combined experience, our team will work with you to fine tune your 
blast. Through our services, operations have been able to reduce powder costs by removing 
holes, rows and/or decks, increase productivity at the crusher with improved fragmentation 
and reduce the impact to surrounding communities. Find out what we can do for you. 

Blast Analysis Service



Range of 
Applications: With Micromate

industry standards for functionality and ease 
of use.  Micromate provides reliable regula-
tory compliance monitoring with an ISEE 
or DIN Triaxial Geophone and ISEE Linear 

hand, Micromate
industry to provide a touch screen interface.  
Support of USB 2.0 allows use of memory 
sticks and approved external devices such as 
USB hubs, modems, printers and GPS (sold 
separately).  Ruggedness and reliability, 
cornerstone attributes of Instantel products, 
are designed in.

Communications
Micromate supports USB 2.0 on both the 
host and device ports, operating up to 12 
MB/s.  External memory sticks, and Instan-
tel compatible printer, modem and a host of 
optional USB peripherals (sold separately)
are supported.  Supported peripherals are 

and associated commands and functions are 
made available (in much the same manner 
that you are accustomed to with your 
laptop and computer). Micromate supports 
Instantel’s AutoCall Home™ feature; when 
an event occurs the event is immediately 
captured and is automatically transmitted to 
your computer (there is no need to prompt 
the unit to transmit data). 

Easy to Use
With the use of a color touch screen and 
icon based user interface, Instantel sets a 

ease of use.  A key pad compliments the 
user interface.  Whether you prefer touch 
screens, key pads, or a combination of 

use and easy to learn.  A full display touch 
screen keyboard makes entry of data and 
notes convenient and easy.  Of course, the 
unit can be interfaced to a laptop or com-
puter as well.  Connectors are color coded 

Saving Events
Events and unit settings are saved in a reli-
able on-board, non-volatile memory with 
ample storage capacity for most applications 
and up to 1,000 events (with additional 
optional memory capacity available).  Data 
can be transferred for off-unit storage or 
off-unit data manipulation to a computer 

or laptop via the 
convenient USB 
interface or via use of 
a compatible modem.  
Data retrieval can be 
as simple as copying 
events to an external 
USB memory stick 
(no laptop or com-
puter is required).

Rugged and 
Reliable
Simply put, the 
Micromate is built 
to last.  It’s built to be reliable, every day and all day – for 
years!  The base unit comes with a fully sealed top panel, 
non-corrosive industrial grade connectors and fully sealed 
electronics.  The base unit housing and connectors provide 
a water resistant seal.  The custom molded housings for the 
geophone and base unit are made of superior impact polycar-
bonate.  An optional protective “boot” complete with faceplate 
provides the highest level of durability and ruggedness avail-
able in Instantel’s product line.

Key Features
USB 2.0 with Host and Device support
USB support for memory sticks, and Instantel compatible 

sold separately)  
Large, high resolution, color graphics touch screen. Easy 
to read and navigate menu structure
Context Sensitive Icons: Icons are only shown if they are 
relevant to what you are doing 
Short Cut Icons: Fast, one touch access to the most com-
monly used features 

Integrated Keypad: Large 10-key interface with dedi-
cated function keys
Supports Instantel’s Auto Call Home for remote auto-
mated data reporting/transmission

-
uled self checks, scheduled Auto Call Home times and 
when to start and stop monitoring
Small enough to be hand-held
Rugged and reliable: Field rugged and durable design 
with a fully sealed top panel, non–corrosive connectors, 
and sealed electronics to enhance water resistance
Optional protective boot and faceplate
Storage capacity for 1,000 events (additional capacity 
optional)

sold 
separately)
10 day battery life (standard), 15 days (optional)



Toll Free:  (800) 267 9111

The World’s Most Trusted Vibration Monitors

© 2015 Xmark Corporation. Instantel, the Instantel logo, Auto Call Home, AutoRecord, 
Blastmate, Blastware, Histogram Combo, InstaLink, Micromate and Minimate are 

Channels
Vibration Monitoring
 Range
 Response Standard
 Resolution
 Accuracy (ISEE/DIN)
 Transducer Density
 Frequency Range (ISEE/DIN)
 Maximum Cable Length (ISEE/DIN)
Air Overpressure Monitoring
 Weighting Scales
 Response Standard
 Linear Range
 Linear Resolution
 Linear Accuracy
 Linear Frequency Response
 Maximum Cable Length (ISEE)

Record Modes
Seismic Trigger
Linear Acoustic Trigger
Sample Rate
Record Stop Mode
Record Time
AutoRecord Time

Cycle Time
Storage Capacity
 Full Waveform Events

Record Modes

Recording Interval
Histogram Storage Capacity
Histogram Combo Storage Capacity

Dimensions 
Weight
Battery
User Interface
Display
Printer (sold separately)
PC Interface
Auxillary Inputs and Outputs (Optional)
Environmental
 LCD Operating Temperature
 Operating Temperature Supporting USB
  Sensors

Operating Temperature Without USB
Sensors           

Remote Communications
Electrical Standard

Waveform Recording

Histogram Recording

Microphone and Triaxial Geophone (ISEE or DIN)

Up to 254 mm/s (10 in/s)
ISEE or DIN 45669-1
0.00788 mm/s (0.00031 in/s)
+/- 5% or 0.5 mm/s (0.02 in/s), whichever is larger, between 4 and 125 Hz / DIN 45669-1 Standard
2.0 g/cc (127 lbs/ft3)

1000 m (3280 ft)

ISEE Linear Microphone

88 to 148 dB (500 Pa [0.072 psi] Peak)
0.0156 Pa (2.2662x10-6 psi)
+/- 10% or +/- 1dB, whichever is larger, between 4 and 125 Hz
2 to 250 Hz between -3 dB roll off points
500 m (1640 ft)

Waveform, Waveform Manual
0.13 to 254 mm/s (0.005 to 10 in/s)
2.0 pa to 500 pa (100 dB to 148 dB)
1,024, 2,048, 4,096 S/s per channel (independent of record time)
Fixed record time, Instantel AutoRecord™ record stop mode
1 to 90 seconds (programmable in one-second steps) plus a pre-trigger at 0.25, 0.50, 0.75, or 1.0 second
Event is recorded until activity remains below trigger level for duration of auto window, or until available 

Recording uninterrupted by event processing, monitoring, or communication - zero dead time

1,000, 1 second events at 2,048 S/s sample rate (memory upgrade optional)

Histogram and Instantel Histogram Combo™ (monitor captures triggered waveforms while recording in 
Histogram mode)
2 to 30 seconds in 1 second increments, and 30 seconds to 30 minutes in 30 second increments
Approximately 220,000 intervals.  Examples: 5 days at 2 second intervals, or 150 days at 1 minute 
Example: 30 Days of Histogram recording at 1 minute intervals, and over 900 1 second waveform events

101.6 x 135.1 x 44.5 mm (4.15 x 5.32 x 1.75 in)
0.5 kg (1.1 lbs)
10 day rechargeable lithium ion (optional 15 day battery upgrade available)
10 domed tactile keys, colour touch screen, and full display keyboard with dedicated icons for common functions
QVGA, 320 x 240 color touch screen
Precision high-resolution
USB
External trigger, Remote alarm

-10 to 550C (14 to 1310F)
-40 to 450C (-40 to 1130F)

-40 to 550C (-40 to 1310F)*

Compatible with these supported modems; Sierra Wireless™ Airlink® Raven Series X, XT, GX400, or LS300 
CE Class B - The Micromate has been tested and passed IEC (CB scheme test report available) 61010-1

*NOTE: LCD screen saver must be enabled and set to a maximum time out of 2 minutes.



®

The World’s Most Trusted Monitors — Vibration · Noise · Air Overpressure www.instantel.com

Introduction
The Sound Level Microphone for Micromate, 
also called a noise microphone, can perform 
unattended monitoring of noise in applications 
such as building activities, construction, traffic, 
and mining operations. The Micromate now lets 
you synchronize noise and vibration data on the 
same monitoring unit, making the Micromate 
a cost effective and flexible monitor for these 
applications.  

The Instantel® Sound Level Microphone for 
the Micromate meets the requirements for IEC 
61672 Class 1, which includes A and C weighted 
specifications.  It has a measuring range from 
30 to 140 dB with a Fast or Slow response.  The 
record mode can be set to Waveform Manual, 
Waveform (records up to 90 seconds once 
a preset trigger level has been exceeded), 
Histogram (with intervals from 2 seconds to 30 
minutes) or Histogram Combo™ (combining 
histogram and waveform monitoring at the same 
time). 

The microphone connects directly to the Microphone port of the Micromate.  This 
microphone can be connected directly to the unit or using an extension cable up to 75 
meters (250 feet) long.
 

Specifications
Weighting A-Weight or C-Weight 

Frequency Range Up to 20 kHz

Response Fast (125 ms) or Slow (1 s)

Resolution 0.05 dB (display limit 0.1dB)

Range Automatic

Trigger Levels 33 dB to 140 dB 

Temperature Range -10° to 50°C (14° to 122°F) 

Cable Length 2 m (6.5 ft) 

Maximum Amplitude 160 dB

Micromate® Sound Level Microphone (Part No. 721A2301)

Sound Level Microphone



The World’s Most Trusted Vibration Monitors

®

Corporate Office:
309 Legget Drive, 
Ottawa, Ontario  K2K 3A3 
Canada 

Toll Free:  (800) 267 9111
Telephone: (613) 592 4642
Facsimile: (613) 592 4296
Email:  sales@instantel.com

US Office:
808 Commerce Park Drive, 
Ogdensburg, New York  13669
USA

M
70

56
 R

ev
 0

2 
- 

Pr
od

uc
t 

S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 S

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
C
ha

ng
e

© 2017 Xmark Corporation. Instantel, the Instantel logo, Micromate, THOR, and 
Auto Call Home are trademarks of Stanley Black and Decker or its affiliates.

The World’s Most Trusted Monitors — Vibration · Noise · Air Overpressure

Serial Number/Model Number UM8999/Micromate ISEE 10.77
Battery Level 3.8 volts
Unit Calibration November 24, 2015 by Instantel
Microphone Calibration UA10081, December 2, 2015 by Field 

Calibration
Event File Name UM8999_20151202152527.IDFW

Waveform Trigger Source Vert at December 2, 2015 15:25:27
Trigger Level(s) Geo 0.500 in/s,Mic 50.0 dB(A)
Pre-Trigger/Record Time 0.25 sec/1.0 sec(Fixed)
Sample Rate 1024 sps
Operator/Setup File Name Operator/Tunneling.mmb

Notes
Location: Albert St Subway Station
Client: ACB Construction
User Name: John Smyth
General: Light Rail Transit Project
GPS Coordinates N45 25 18.0, W75 41 46.8

Post Event Notes Albert St. Waveform Report

Geophone Tran Vert Long
Peak Particle Velocity 0.070 in/s 0.793 in/s 0.069 in/s
Zero Crossing Frequency 17.1 Hz 17.1 Hz N/A
Time (Relative to Trigger) 0.038 sec 0.032 sec -0.002 sec
Peak Acceleration 0.035 g 0.572 g 0.113 g
Peak Displacement 0.001 in 0.007 in 0.001 in
Sensor Check ✔ Passed ✔ Passed ✔ Passed
  Frequency 7.3 Hz 7.3 Hz 7.3 Hz
  Overswing Ratio 4.1 3.9 3.6 

Peak Vector Sum 0.795 in/s at 0.032 sec

Sound Level Microphone A-Weight Fast
LMax 50.5 dB(A)
Time (Relative to Trigger) 0.055 sec

LMin
Sound (dB(A)) 37.0
Sensor Check ✔ Passed
  MicA Test Amplitude 1077 mv

USBM RI8507 And OSMRE
Velocity versus Frequency (Zero Crossing)

1 2 5 10 20 50 100

0.05

0.1

0.2

0.5

1

1 10 100

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

0.039

0.39

3.9

2

5

10

0.039 +

+

x

x
x

x
x
x

xx

xx
xx
xxø

Frequency (Hz)
+ Tran x Vert ø Long

Tr
an

Ve
rt

Lo
ng

M
ic

A

Created by version 1.0.0.19. Format © 2016 Xmark Corporation Page 1 / 2

Time (sec)

-0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

-1
-0.8
-0.6
-0.4
-0.2

0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

1

Time (sec)

-0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

-1
-0.8
-0.6
-0.4
-0.2

0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

1

Time (sec)

-0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

-1
-0.8
-0.6
-0.4
-0.2

0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8

1

Time (sec)

-0.2 0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1

So
un

d 
(d

B(
A)

)

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Serial Number/Model Number UM8999/Micromate ISEE 10.77
Battery Level 3.8 volts
Unit Calibration November 24, 2015 by Instantel
Microphone Calibration UA10081, December 2, 2015 by Field 

Calibration
Event File Name UM8999_20151202153236.IDFH

Start December 2, 2015 15:32:36
Finish December 2, 2015 15:36:21
Number Of Intervals/Interval 112.50/2 sec
Sample Rate 1024 sps
Operator/Setup File Name Operator/Tunneling.mmb

Notes
Location: Albert St Subway Station
Client: ACB Construction
User Name: John Smyth
General: Light Rail Transit Project
GPS Coordinates N45 25 18.0, W75 41 46.8

Post Event Notes Albert St. Histogram Report

Geophone Tran Vert Long
Peak Particle Velocity 0.217 in/s 0.245 in/s 0.560 in/s
Zero Crossing Frequency 6.8 Hz 17.1 Hz 7.4 Hz
Date Dec 2, 2015 Dec 2, 2015 Dec 2, 2015
Time 15:33:04 15:32:40 15:34:46
Sensor Check ✔ Passed ✔ Passed ✔ Passed
  Frequency 7.3 Hz 7.3 Hz 7.3 Hz
  Overswing Ratio 4.1 3.9 3.5 

Peak Vector Sum 0.577 in/s at December 2, 2015 15:34:46

Sound Level Microphone A-Weight Fast
LMax 53.8 dB(A)
Time of Peak December 2, 2015 15:32:40

LMin
Sound (dB(A)) 38.3
Sensor Check ✔ Passed
  MicA Test Amplitude 1073 mv

USBM RI8507 And OSMRE
Velocity versus Frequency (Zero Crossing)

1 2 5 10 20 50 100

0.05

0.1

0.2

0.5

1

1 10 100

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

0.039

0.39

3.9

2

5

10

0.039

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+

+ +

+

+

+

+

+

+

++ +

+
++

+

+

++

++
+

+
+

+

++
+

+++
+

+

+

+
++
+

+

x

x
xx
x

xx
xxx
x

xxxxxx
xxxx
xxxxxx
x
xxx
xx
xx
xxxxxxxx

xxxxx
xx
x
x

x
xxx
x

x

xxxx
x
x x
x
x x
xxxxxxxx
xx
xx
xxxxxxxxxxxxx

x
x
x
xxxxx
xxx
x
x
xxx
xx

x

øø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø
ø

ø
ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø
ø

ø

ø
ø

ø

ø

ø

ø
ø

ø

ø

ø
ø

ø
ø

ø

øø

ø

øøø
ø ø

ø

ø
ø

øø
ø

øø

ø

ø ø

ø
ø

øø ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

øø

ø
ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

ø
ø ø

ø

ø

ø

ø

Frequency (Hz)
+ Tran x Vert ø Long

Tr
an

Ve
rt

Lo
ng

M
ic

A

Created by version 1.0.0.19. Format © 2016 Xmark Corporation Page 1 / 1

15:32:38 15:33:00 15:33:22 15:33:44 15:34:06 15:34:28 15:34:50 15:35:12 15:35:34 15:35:56 15:36:18

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

0.4

0.8

1.2

15:32:38 15:33:00 15:33:22 15:33:44 15:34:06 15:34:28 15:34:50 15:35:12 15:35:34 15:35:56 15:36:18

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

0.4

0.8

1.2

15:32:38 15:33:00 15:33:22 15:33:44 15:34:06 15:34:28 15:34:50 15:35:12 15:35:34 15:35:56 15:36:18

Ve
lo

ci
ty

 (i
n/

s)

0.4

0.8

1.2

15:32:38 15:33:00 15:33:22 15:33:44 15:34:06 15:34:28 15:34:50 15:35:12 15:35:34 15:35:56 15:36:18

So
un

d 
(d

B(
A)

)

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Waveform Event Report

Histogram Event Report



Designed to provide accurate 
information on particle concen-
tration and operate continuously 
in adverse environments. 

Special features such as the 
purge air system and automatic 
zero calibration enable the moni-
tor to operate 24/7. 

A sheath air system isolates the 
aerosol in the chamber to keep 
the optics clean for long term 
reliability and low maintenance. 

LCD Display provided informa-
tion on operation including: 
power, heater power, flow opera-
tion, status and particulate con-
centration. 

The ES-642 Remote Dust Monitor is an indus-
trial air-quality sensor designed to provide accu-
rate measurements of particle concentration in  
both indoor and outdoor environments.  The unit 
is supplied in a rugged weatherproof enclosure.  
It includes an LCD display to provide informa-
tion about particulate concentration, flow rate, 
instrument status and power.  The electronics 
and optical system are protected from moisture 
by a built in intake heater that is humidity level 
controlled.  The heater power is regulated to 
maintain a minimum humidity level.  Additional 
features include a purge air system and an 
automatic zero calibration routine.   
The sensor can be wall mounted or installed on 
a vertical mast up to 3 inch in diameter.   

The ES-642 is supplied with a 10 ft cable and 
connector for power (15 to 40 VDC) and signal 
output.    
The ES-642 measures particulate concentration 
using a highly sensitive forward scatter laser 
nephelometer, having a measurement range of 
0 to 100 mg/cubic meter or 0 to 100,000 ug/
cubic meter.   Optional sharp-cut cyclones are 
used to set the measurement level of the ES-
642.  As supplied it provides particulate monitor-
ing for TSP, with the addition of the sharp-cut 
cyclone it can be set for particulate smaller than 
PM10 or smaller than PM2.5, or PM1.  The ac-
curacy of the instrument is +/-5% based on a 
traceable PSL 0.6 micron reference standard.   

MODBUS 

Serial ASCII Text 

RS-232 and RS-485 

0-10 Volts Analog Signal 

4-20 mA Analog Signal 

Automatic zero calibration  

Controlled input heater 

Easily removable filters 

Contact closure alarm output 

Front panel LCD Display 

Sealed environmental enclo-

sure  

Building Automation 

Military Applications 

Environmental Cleanup Sites 

Air Pollution Level Monitoring 

Dust Level Warning Systems 

ES-642 

1600 NW Washington Blvd, Grants Pass, OR 97526 
Tel: (541) 471-7111   E-Mail:  sales@metone.com 

WWW.METONE.COM 



PARAMETER SPECIFICATION

Measurement Principles: Particulate concentration by forward light scatter laser Nephelometer.

Available Cut Points: TSP Inlet Standard. PM10, PM2.5, and PM1 sharp-cut cyclone inlets available.

Measurement Range: 0 to 100 mg/m3 (0 to 100,000 g/m3)

Measurement Sensitivity: .001 mg/m3.

Nephelometer Accuracy: ±  5% traceable standard with 0.6um PSL.

Particle Size Sensitivity: 0.1 to 100 micron. Optimal sensitivity 0.5 to 10 micron particles.

Display: 2 X 16 backlit LCD.  Provides information on operation including: Power, Flow Op-
eration, Status and Concentration.

Zero Calibration: Automatic Zero Calibration every hour or as programmed from 1 to 999 minutes.

Flow Rate: 2.0 liters/minute ± 0.1 lpm. 

Power: 15 � 40 VDC @ 1.5 A maximum.

Power Consumption: 350 mA (no heater) 1.1 A (with heater) @ 15 VDC.

Analog Output: 4-20 mA and 0 � 10 VDC.

Digital I/O: RS-485 full and half duplex, RS-232.

Serial Communication: ASCII Text data format and MODBUS RTU.

Alarm Output: Normally open and normally closed relay 30 VDC @ 1A maximum.

Operating Temperature: 0 to +50°C . (Ambient Temperature Sensor Range -30 to +50°C).

Barometric Pressure: 600 to 1040 mbar pressure sensor range.

Ambient Humidity Range: 0 to 90% RH, non-condensing.

Intake Moisture Control: Automatic 10 Watt inlet heater module controlled to sample RH set point.

Factory Service Interval: 24 Months typical, under continuous use in normal ambient air.

Mounting Options: Wall mount bracket standard. Optional EX-905 tripod.

Unit Weight: 2.27 kg ( 6.0 lbs)

Unit Dimensions:
22.9cm high, 17.8cm wide, 10.8cm deep. (9.0� x 7.0� x 4.25�). w/out inlet assy.
48.3cm high, 17.8cm wide, 10.8cm deep. (19.0� x 7.0� x 4.25�). w/ inlet assy.

Specifications             ES-642

Specifications are subject to change without notice 



ATTACHMENT 7 

BLASTING PERMIT COMPLIANCE 

 

(Ordinance Refence: Page 13 of 18 Attachment A.  Include documentation and facts demonstrating blasting 

operation is going to be conducted in a manner that reduces related adverse impact on surrounding properties 

through compliance with ordinance.  Please specifically list all steps taken, such as distance limitations related to 

adjacent properties, use of berms and any dust and noise remediation efforts, etc.) 

 



BLASTING COMPLIANCE 
 

All blasting will be in compliance with any and all local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

Distance Requirements 

 

Figure 7.1 shows the limits of SCS’s proposed quarry blasting.   

 

The blasting limits proposed are as follows:  

• 500 feet from the property line shared by SCS and the Double Horn Subdivision 

(Western Property Line);  

• 500 feet from the property line shared by SCS and the Spicewood Trails Subdivision 

(Eastern/Southern Property Line);  

• 300 feet from the property line shared by SCS and the Carrington Family property 

(Northern Property Line). 

The 300 feet setback along the boundary between SCS and the Carrington Family property is 

closer than the 500-foot distance requirement per City Ordinance No. 2019-ORD015 Section 5A; 

however, this area is currently uninhabited ranch land with no adjacent residences.  SCS requests 

a variance to the distance requirements along this section of property line. 

 

Blasting distances shall be maintained from the property line by survey. 

 

Timing 

 

Blasting will occur between the hours of 9:00AM to 4:30PM Monday through Friday.  Due to 

increased ambient noise during these hours, the perceived noise impact will be reduced.  No 

blasting will occur on Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays.   

 

Several residents have requested to be notified prior to blasts occurring.  SCS has compiled a list 

of these residents and will provide them a notification message prior to each blast.  Notifications 

will occur at least 30 minutes prior to each blast per the Ordinance requirement. 

 

Air Blast Limit 

 

Air blast shall not exceed 134 dB 

 

Ground Vibration Limit 

 

Ground vibration will not exceed the frequency based PPV limit of 100% of the USBM Z-Curve. 

 

Air Particulate Limit 

 

Air particulates shall not exceed the lowest permissible limits as identified in any required state 

or federal permits. 

 



Noise Limit 

 

Noise shall not exceed 85 dB(A).  This noise limit does not apply to Air Blast. 

 

Flyrock Control 

 

Flyrock from blasting operations will not be cast from the blasting site beyond the area under 

SCS’s control. 

 

Additional Controls 

 

SCS has retained some of the most highly regarded professionals in their fields to ensure the 

blasting operation is conducted properly   

 

Included this this permit application is a document from Buckley Powder Co. detailing standard 

operating procedure including: 

o Personnel Training 

o Terminology 

o Blast pattern layout 

o Drilling 

o Loading of explosive materials 

o Use of electronic detonators 

o Buckley Powder Qualifications 

Blasts will not be planned if weather forecasts indicate the perceived effects of the blast will be 

exaggerated by strong wind toward the receiver or severe temperature inversions.   

 

Berms to mitigate noise will be built in stages utilizing material from the first series of blasting 

and excavation (See Figure 7.2).  Currently the berm along the north boundary of the property is 

built.  The next stage is to build the berm proceeding south parallel to the Double Horn 

Subdivision boundary.  As material is available from the excavation, the berm will advance.  The 

excavation of the quarry is planned to proceed from the north to the south.  Initial data from the 

test blast taken in January 2020 indicate compliance without berms, however, the berms will help 

to provide additional visual and noise buffering. 

 

The area between Double Horn Subdivision boundary and the permanent power lines will remain 

naturally vegetated.  With this buffer maintained, there is little if any visual impacts of the 

operation on Double Horn.   

 

The vegetative buffers and berms proposed exceed any regulatory requirement and follow 

industry best practice.   

 



500 FT

Legend

Excavation Area (Limits of Blasting)

Property Line

300 FT (Waiver Request)

300 FT (Waiver Request)

300 FT (Waiver Request)

500 FT

500 FT

500 FT Distance Requirement (ORD015)

Figure 7.1 - Actual Blasting Limits vs. ORD015 500 FT Distance Setback Requirement



LANDSCAPE BERM ALIGNMENT

SPICEWOOD QUARRY

BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS

S

T

A

T

E

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

7

1

V

I
S

T

A

 
V

I
E

W

 
T

R

A

I
L

SPICEWOOD CRUSHED STONE, LLC

0 500250 1,000

SCALE IN FEET

N

APPROX. PROPERTY LINE

LANDSCAPE BERM

QUARRY BERMS

SURFACE CONTOURS: 
USGS NED 1/3 ARC-SECOND N31W099 1X1 DEGREE
ARC GRID 2019

AERIAL IMAGERY:
2015 ORTHOIMAGERY TEXAS NATURAL RESOURCES
INFORMATION SYSTEM. 

Berms Constructed as of 04/01/2020

Berms to be Constructed in Future

Legend:

Note: 

Approximate Location of Berms Shown. 
Actual Location may vary from what is
shown to account for field conditions
(reduce disturbance to existing vegetation,
account for local topography/drainage
ways).

Figure 7.2



ATTACHMENT 8 

MITIGATION PLAN 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 7 of 18. Section 5. The property Owner shall as part of the Partial Exemption Permit 

application submit a Mitigation Plan which includes the construction of vibration and sound attenuation berms and 

placement or construction of such other measures as are necessary to meet the requirements of this Ordinance.) 



Mitigation Plan 
 

The compliance with the conditions and regulations of this Ordinance will mitigate the effects of 

blasting operations.  The specific regulatory criteria will not be repeated in this section.  The 

specific plan to ensure compliance are as follows: 

 

Communication 

 

Open communication between the Mayor, neighbors, and SCS has been established with contact 

names and numbers.  Our staff is committed to meet at reasonable times to address any issues.  

Currently the City website contains a link which includes SCS contact information.  This has 

been utilized by citizens; as of this permit application date we have had twelve residences who 

have requested pre-blast notifications and eleven residences who have requested home baseline 

foundation inspections (provided at no cost the homeowners).  

 

In addition, several neighbors have reached out to meet personally.  SCS has also identified 

blasting contractor and geotechnical consultant personnel who are available to meet with the 

Mayor and neighbors.  This establishes the ability to provide a timely response to concerns or 

questions. 

 

Production Goals 

 

Compliance with the US Bureau of Mines established standards, which contain safety factors, 

has been the industry standard for some time. The major issues today are perceptions of blasting 

activities - especially air overpressure.  It should be noted that in large remote quarries it is not 

necessary to incorporate these more expensive blasting procedures and practices as outlined 

below.  However, to create a sustainable operation at this location, the following best practices 

will be utilized: 

 

• Use of electronic blasting caps or equal to precisely time the explosions. 

 

• Reduction in Bench Height from 95+/-ft which is typical for Texas to 50+/- ft.  This 

requires a 2nd blast for the lower bench which should have much reduced effects. 

 

• Blast face orientation will be considered during the initial opening up to set the stage for 

optimal orientation once full production begins.  Operational flexibility is required to 

optimize the results based upon the geology encountered. 

 

• Blasting will be scheduled taking into consideration the effects of weather.  The air 

overpressure effects can be increased by weather.  However, it should be noted, “studies 

have been made on weather effects on airblasts; however, a practical prediction scheme 

has not been developed.” Reference: Structural Response And Damage Produced By 

Airblast from Surface Mining, Siskand et al 2000.  “Wind direction and speed are the 

most critical weather influences on air overpressure propagation.  Inversions are 

secondary.  Strong winds blowing from the sound source toward the receiver can increase 



the sound level by over 20 dB from the normal cube-root-scaled propagation”.  

Reference: Structural Response And Damage Produced By Airblast from Surface 

Mining, Siskand et al 2000.  Windspeed, direction, terrain between blast and receptors, 

and bench height and direction will be considered in blast scheduling.  Wind speed and 

direction can contribute to dust leaving the site therefore blasts will be rescheduled if the 

forecast calls for winds in excess of a moderate breeze. 

 

Sound Attenuation  

 

Vegetated buffers, terrain and constructed berms are industry proven features which mitigate 

noise from quarry operations.  Our development design for the quarry incorporated those features 

into the design.  These features: width of buffers, berms and high wall setbacks from property 

lines, far exceed any required permit and permanently stranded valuable reserves.   

 

The berms were not required by LCRA or TCEQ, however, they were incorporated into the 

Spicewood operation to act as additional noise/visual buffers. 

 

Part of the LCRA approval process was an extensive design review to ensure that the berm 

construction does not negatively impact water quality.  Several hundreds of thousands of dollars 

were spent on the design work.  To clarify the approved design: 

1. The berms may be built up to 20 feet high and 90 feet wide but may also be less in berm 

height and width.  This was done to allow operational flexibility in the actual constructed 

dimensions depending on line of sight from receptors to the operations. 

 

2. The vegetated buffer setback was designed as 100 feet along the northern property line, 

200 feet along the Double Horn boundary. 

 

3. LCRA drawings show all berms in their proposed final built out locations.  This was done 

so that all engineering and hydrologic effects were preapproved.  The sequence of 

building the berms follows common sense to build the berms to mitigate the effects of 

current operations first and complete them as operations progress.  As an example, SCS 

built the berm near the scale area first to mitigate the effects of our shop and scale house 

construction. 

 

4. During the next year, the berms will progress from the northwest corner of the property 

towards the south along the Double Horn boundary.  Material from our initial 

development blasts will be utilized. 

 

5. Based upon topography and line of sight to receptors from operations, the eastern most 

berms (along Spicewood Trails Subdivision) and southern most berms along Double 

Horn subdivision may not be built for years, nor would they serve any purpose if 

constructed today. 

 



ATTACHMENT 9 

MITIGATION OF PERCIEVED NEGATIVE EFFECTS 

 

(Ordinance Refence: Page 13 of 18 Attachment A.  Include documentation and facts demonstrating efforts by 

designee to protect and mitigate the perceived negative adverse effects such activity has on real property values, 

public safety, health and welfare interests.) 

 



Mitigation of Perceived Negative Effects 
 

Real Property Values 

 

The Spicewood quarry property was purchased and permitted for quarry operations prior to the 

enactment of the blasting ordinance and City incorporation.  The quarry design voluntarily 

created buffer zones, setbacks, and blasting limits which exceeded regulations at the time of 

design.  These design decisions stranded valuable mineral reserves; thereby reducing the value of 

the property from its full legal use prior to the incorporation of the City.   

 

Protecting property rights and values for all parties is a goal of our operations.  Accordingly, we 

have adopted numerous voluntary industry best practices to eliminate negative impact on our 

neighbors.   

 

A recent impartial independent study by The Phoenix Center for Advanced Legal & Economic 

Public Policy Studies entitled: “Quarry Operations and Property Values: Revisiting Old and 

Investigating New Empirical Evidence” dated March 12, 2018 provides analysis of this topic.  

The study concludes “we find no compelling statistical evidence that either the anticipation of or 

the ongoing operations of, rock quarries negatively impact home prices.” 

 
https://www.phoenix-center.org/pcpp/PCPP53Final.pdf 

 

Public Safety  

 

Blasting and the handling and transport of explosives is highly regulated by Federal ATF 

regulations. 

 

Heath/Welfare 

 

Conformance with the City’s blasting Ordinance, which is based on the US Bureau of Mines, 

provides adequate safeguards and safety factors based on extensive research.  In addition, the 

buffer areas, berms, and operating hours mitigate impact. 

 

Property Damage  

 

In addition, to the requirements of the City’s blasting Ordinance, SCS has voluntarily arranged 

for property inspectors and baseline surveys for homeowners bordering our property.  These 

have been completed at no cost to the homeowners and will be forwarded directly to them.  

These baseline studies will help the homeowners evaluate the existing condition of their home 

prior to the commencement of blasting operations. 

 

The definitive US Bureau of Mines 8507 Report recognizes the structural response from 

everyday activities including the effects of wind and temperature changes.  Per that study, it 

should be noted that “comparison between blast – and human – produced effects suggest that 

house superstructures are continuously subjected to transients producing localized strains 

equivalent to ground vibrations of up to 0.50 in/sec”.   

https://www.phoenix-center.org/pcpp/PCPP53Final.pdf


ATTACHMENT 10 

PROOF OF INSURANCE 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 9 of 18. Section 6 b. Proof of Insurance.  Property Owner shall have in effect 

$10,000,000 of insurance insuring against any loss or damage suffered by a third-party, naming the City as 

additional insured and shall provide to Regulator Authority all information necessary in order to verify insurance 

and that would allow a person to file a claim.) 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

NCASHMAN

01/07/2020

DALRGRA-01

C
CUP0P949772-19

B
8101L30171-19

A
CO2F961603-19

D  AEC016413203

10,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000
4,000,000

5,000
300,000

2,000,000

EBL AGGREGATE 4,000,000
1,000,000

X

X

X

X X

X

X
X

12/01/2019 12/01/2020

12/01/2019 12/01/2020

12/01/2019 12/01/2020

12/01/2019 12/01/2020

RE:  Partial Exemption Permit
City of Double Horn is added as additional insured to general lablity with respect to permit being requested by insured.

Rose & Kiernan, Inc.
99 Troy Road
East Greenbush, NY 12061

(518) 244-4262(518) 244-4245

City of Double Horn
102 Double Horn Trail
Double Horn, TX 78669

Spicewood Crushed Stone LLC
3490 FM 78
Mc Queeney, TX 78123

The Phoenix Insurance Company
The Charter Oak Fire Insurance Company
The Travelers Indemnity Co
American Guarantee & Liability Insurance Company

25623
25615

26247
25658

X

Ea Occurrence/Aggreg 20,000,000Excess Umbrella



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Rose & Kiernan, Inc.

DALRGRA-01

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

0

SEE P 1

Spicewood Crushed Stone LLC
3490 FM 78
Mc Queeney, TX 78123

SEE PAGE 1

NCASHMAN

1

FORMS NOTED
General Liability: Contractors Xtend Endorsement CGD316 (01/11) - Additional Insured, and Waiver of Subrogation clauses included
Blanket Additional Insured (Contractors) CGD246 0805- Additional Insured for Completed Operations, Primary Non Contributory 

Commercial Auto:  Blanket Additional Insured - Primary and Non-contributory with other insurance CAT474 2/16;  New York 
Business Auto Coverage Extension Form CA T9 60 (2/15) - Blanket Waiver of Subrogation clause included

Commercial Umbrella Liablty Policy Excess Follow-Form and Umbrella Liability Ins.- Form EU00 01 

Commercial Umbrella Liability Policy U-UMB-103-C CW (03/10):  Blanket Additional Insured & Waiver of Subrogation

Workers Compensation:  Waiver of Our Right to Recover WC000313



ATTACHMENT 11 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 8 of 18.  As a condition of the Partial Exemption Permit for any continuing operations 

permit, the Property Owner shall establish a Voluntary Dispute Resolution Process for a property owner to avail 

themselves of, outside the confines of this Ordinance, in accordance with Attachment B.) 



Voluntary Dispute Resolution Process 
 

The following instructions should be posted on the City’s website. 

 

“Citizen Blasting Complaints – Alternate Dispute Resolution” 

 

Steps to Follow: 

1. Reference Attachment B of City Ordinance No. 2019-ORD015 

2. Submit Citizen Quarry Blast Impact Report 

3. Upon receipt of a properly completed form, a representative of Spicewood Crushed Stone 

will meet with the complainant to review the claim and discuss the issues.  The meeting 

will be scheduled within a reasonable period of time during business hours. 

4. If a resolution cannot be achieved the complainant may request to continue the process as 

outlined in Attachment B. 

 



City of Double Horn 
Citizen Quarry Blast Impact Report 

Note: By filing this report, you consent to the public release of this information. 

 

 

Name:  Report Date:  

Address:  Email Address:  

Phone:  Blast Date/Time:   

 
 
Please Describe the Event: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Please Describe the Damage: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Estimated amount of compensation  

In what general direction does your house face? (N,S,E,W)  

Is your home a 1 story, 1 ½ story, 2 story or larger?  

What is the approximate square footage of your home?  

Was a baseline study conducted prior to blasting? If so when? Please provide copy  

 
 
 
 
Please complete the form and print it, then submit the completed report(s) to the City Hall. 
Thank you for submitting the form. 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 12 

EDUCATIONAL MATERIAL 

 

(Ordinance Reference: Page 8 of 18. Educational Material) 



Educational Materials 
 

Spicewood Crushed Stone has put together the following articles, which can be posted on the 

City’s website.  These articles are meant to educate the public with respect to blasting. 

The following topics are discussed: 

o Air Overpressure  

o Ground Vibrations from Mining 

For further information, the public can use the following link to access the report upon which many 

industry standards are based: 

https://www.osmre.gov/resources/blasting/docs/USBM/RI8507BlastingVibration1989.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.osmre.gov/resources/blasting/docs/USBM/RI8507BlastingVibration1989.pdf


Air Overpressure 

When a mine blasts, if you are standing in the nearby area you may hear the blast fire.  This 

sound is similar to a term known as air overpressure.  In many cases if you are at a distance from 

the blast you will not hear or feel this air overpressure, but if you live nearby you will hear it. 

This noise lasts less than a second and is kept to low levels. 

This air overpressure is measured by scientific instrumentation called a seismograph which uses 

an advanced microphone to detect the sound. This sound is measured in decibels, which is a 

logrithmic scale which can sometimes lead to confusion.  Every 6 decibels is a doubling of the 

sound, so 128 dB is half of 134 dB.  The U.S. Government limits a mines blasting to 134 dB at 

the nearest house, which is equivalent to about a 20 mile per hour wind gust – these low levels 

are in place to ensure protection of the community and were extensively studied by the U.S. 

Burea of Mines.  This is actually 3% of the level of air overpressure that causes windows to 

break, this ensures that the mine does not only prevent damage but also does not scare the local 

community.  

Mines will then develop site specific models to predict the air overpressure before any blast.  

They will recruit and hire expert engineers to help them develop blasting plans to ensure that the 

air overpressure is reduced to below these legal limts.  This is all in an effort to help work with 

the local community and their nearby neighbors. This does not mean you won’t hear or feel the 

air overpressure, this just means it shouldn’t worry you because it is controlled to ensure you and 

your house are safe. 

See below to find the scale which compares the mines air overpressure to different levels of wind 

gusts that your area may experience. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ground Vibration from Mining 

Mining of the modern world is a safe, efficient business that employees some of the best 

scientists and engineers in the world to help protect community interests.  The primary area that 

these experts are brought into assist is to develop procedures to limit the ground vibration, or the 

movement of the earth, that the local community feels.  These events may be scary for someone 

who doesn’t fully understand what is happening, but these ground vibrations are well controlled, 

monitored, and optimized to provide minimal trouble to nearby neighbors.  The human body is 

one of the best seismographs in the world and will easily feel these ground vibrations – but that 

does not mean that they are worrisome or that they may cause damage.  Most of these vibrations 

last under one second and the ground moves less than the thickness of a piece of paper. 

These vibrations are not earthquakes and are not anywhere near similar to earthquakes.  These 

vibrations are very small and are legally limited to prevent any risk of damage to houses. The 

mine does not measure the total distance the ground moves, but instead it measures how fast the 

ground moves – or the velocity. This has been shown by numerous U.S. Federal Agencies over a 

century of testing to be the important parameter in controlling ground vibration. These are 

legally limited to be extremely low, with a maximum legal limit of 2.0 in/s of movement – 

remember this is not the distance moved but the speed. The common distances that the ground 

moves are about 0.0001 inches. 

How does the ground vibration that a mine produces compare to your everyday life activities? 

• Slamming a door produces about 0.25 inches per second of vibration 

• A kid jumping in the house produces vibration of 0.25 inches per second 

• The daily temperature change causes your house to move like 2.0 inches per second of 

ground vibration 

• Driving in your car produces over 4.0 inches per second of vibration 

Most people never would worry about their house or well-being from these events, because they 

are a part of everyday life and we understand that they don’t cause damage.  The biggest concern 

of communities near mines are because of misunderstandings as humans can feel ground 

vibration as low as 0.001 inches per second and are not used to or predicting the mines blasting. 

Remember: Mine blasting is highly regulated and controlled, mines fall under legal obligations 

to ensure they do not damage your house. The ground vibration you feel from a mine is normal 

and is being monitored and predicted by some of the best engineers in the world. 



ATTACHMENT 13 

OTHER PERMITS 

 



OTHER PERMITS 

The following permits have been attached to this permit application. 

 

o TCEQ Air Permit 

o LCRA Permit 

 



Jon Niermann, Chairman 

Emily Lindley, Commissioner 

Toby Baker, Executive Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

 

P.O. Box 13087   •   Austin, Texas 78711-3087   •   512-239-1000   •   tceq.texas.gov 

How is our customer service?     tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
printed on recycled paper 

 

January 16, 2019 
MS ELIZABETH FARMER 
PROJECT ENGINEER 
SPICEWOOD CRUSHED STONE LLC 
3490 FM 78 
MC QUEENEY TX  78123-3542 
 
 
Re: Air Quality Standard Permit for Permanent Rock and Concrete Crushers 

(As effective July 31, 2008) 
Standard Permit Registration Number:  152977 
Standard Permit Expiration Date:  January 16, 2029 
Spicewood Crushed Stone, LLC 
Rock Crushing Plant 
Spicewood, Burnet County 
Regulated Entity Number:  RN110467511 
Customer Reference Number:  CN605555341 
 

Dear Ms. Farmer: 
 
This is in response to your registration Form PI-1S (Registration for Air Quality Standard Permit) 
regarding the proposed construction of a permanent rock crushing plant to be located at 5550 East State 
Highway 71, near Spicewood, Burnet County.  Also, this will acknowledge that your application for the 
above-referenced registration is technically complete as of August 28, 2018. 
 
After evaluation of the information you submitted, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ) has determined that your proposed construction is authorized by the Air Quality Standard Permit 
for Rock and Concrete Crushers effective July 31, 2008, if constructed and operated as represented in 
your application.  This standard permit was issued under the Texas Clean Air Act (TCAA) § 382.011, 
which authorizes the commission to control the quality of the state’s air, TCAA § 382.023, which 
authorizes the commission to issue orders necessary to carry out the policy and purposes of the TCAA, 
and § 382.05195, which authorizes the commission to issue standard permits. 
 
Copies of the air quality standard permit general and specific conditions in effect at the time of this 
registration are enclosed.  You must begin construction or modification of these facilities in accordance 
with the standard permit no later than 18 months after the date of this letter.  You must notify the 
appropriate TCEQ Regional Office and any other local air pollution control agency having jurisdiction of 
the start and completion of construction; and prior to starting operation activities. 
 
You are reminded that regardless of whether a permit is required, these facilities must be in compliance 
with all rules and regulations of the TCEQ and of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency at all times. 
 
If you need further information or have any questions, please contact Mr. Donald D. Nelon at (512) 239-
0894 or write to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division, MC-
163, P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. 
 



Ms. Elizabeth Farmer 
Page 2 
January 16, 2019 
 
Re:  Standard Permit Registration Number 152977 
 
 

 

This action is taken under authority delegated by the Executive Director of the TCEQ. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Michael Wilson, P.E., Director 
Air Permits Division 
Office of Air 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc: Mr. Jon Greene, Project Engineer, Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions Inc, Austin 
 Air Section Manager, Region 11 - Austin 
 
Project Number:  288784 
 



 

 

Standard Permit General Conditions 
 
The following general conditions are applicable to holders of standard permits, but will not necessarily be specifically 
stated within the standard permit document. 
 
1. Protection of public health and welfare.  The emissions from the facility must comply with all applicable rules and 

regulations of the commission adopted under the Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 382, and with intent of 
the TCAA, including protection of health and property of the public. 

 
2. Standard permit representations.  All representations with regard to construction plans, operating procedures, and 

maximum emission rates in any registration for a standard permit become conditions upon which the facility or 
changes thereto, must be constructed and operated.  It is unlawful for any person to vary from such representations 
if the change will affect that person’s right to claim a standard permit under this section.  Any change in condition 
such that a person is no longer eligible to claim a standard permit under this section requires proper authorization 
under Title 30 Texas Administrative Code § 116.110 (30 TAC § 116.110) (relating to Applicability).  Any changes in 
representations are subject to the following requirements: 

 
(A) For the addition of a new facility, the owner or operator shall submit a new registration incorporating existing 

facilities with a fee, in accordance with §116.611 and §116.614 (relating to Registration to use a Standard 
Permit and Standard Permit Fees) prior to commencing construction. If the applicable standard permit 
requires public notice, construction of the new facility or facilities may not commence until the new registration 
has been issued by the executive director.  

 
(B) For any change in the method of control of emissions, a change in the character of the emissions, or an 

increase in the discharge of the various emissions, the owner or operator shall submit written notification to 
the executive director describing the change(s), along with the designated fee, no later than 30 days after the 
change.  

 
(C) For any other change to the representations, the owner or operator shall submit written notification to the 

executive director describing the change(s) no later than 30 days after the change.  
 
(D) Any facility registered under a standard permit which contains conditions or procedures for addressing 

changes to the registered facility which differ from subparagraphs (A) - (C) of this paragraph shall comply with 
the applicable requirements of the standard permit in place of subparagraphs (A) - (C) of this paragraph. 

 
3. Standard permit in lieu of permit amendment.  All changes authorized by standard permit to a facility previously 

permitted under 30 TAC § 116.110 shall be administratively incorporated into that facility’s permit at such time as 
the permit is amended or renewed. 

 
4. Construction progress.  Start of construction, construction interruptions exceeding 45 days, and completion of 

construction shall be reported to the appropriate regional office not later than 15 working days after occurrence of 
the event, except where a different time period is specified for a particular standard permit. 

 
5. Start-up notification.  The appropriate air program regional office of the commission and any other air pollution 

control program having jurisdiction shall be notified prior to the commencement of operations of the facilities 
authorized by the standard permit in such a manner that a representative of the executive director may be present.  
For phased construction, which may involve a series of units commencing operations at different times, the owner 
or operator of the facility shall provide separate notification for the commencement of operations for each unit.  A 
particular standard permit may modify start-up notification requirements. 

 
6. Sampling requirements.  If sampling of stacks or process vents is required, the standard permit holder shall contact 

the Office of Air and any other air pollution control program having jurisdiction prior to sampling to obtain the proper 
data forms and procedures.  All sampling and testing procedures must be approved by the executive director and 
coordinated with the regional representatives of the commission.  The standard permit holder is also responsible for 
providing sampling facilities and conducting the sampling operations or contracting with an independent sampling 
consultant. 

 
7. Equivalency of methods.  The standard permit holder shall demonstrate or otherwise justify the equivalency of 

emission control methods, sampling or other emission testing methods, and monitoring methods proposed as 



 

 

alternatives to methods indicated in the conditions of the standard permit.  Alternative methods must be applied for 
in writing and must be reviewed and approved by the executive director prior to their use in fulfilling any 
requirements of the standard permit. 

 
8. Recordkeeping.  A copy of the standard permit along with information and data sufficient to demonstrate 

applicability of and compliance with the standard permit shall be maintained in a file at the plant site and made 
available at the request of representatives of the executive director, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or 
any air pollution control program having jurisdiction.  For facilities that normally operate unattended, this information 
shall be maintained at the nearest staffed location within Texas specified by the standard permit holder in the 
standard permit registration.  This information must include (but is not limited to) production records and operating 
hours.  Additional recordkeeping requirements may be specified in the conditions of the standard permit.  
Information and data sufficient to demonstrate applicability of and compliance with the standard permit must be 
retained for at least two years following the date that the information or data is obtained.  The copy of the standard 
permit must be maintained as a permanent record. 

 
9. Maintenance of emission control.  The facilities covered by the standard permit may not be operated unless all air 

pollution emission capture and abatement equipment is maintained in good working order and operating properly 
during normal facility operations.  Notification for upsets and maintenance shall be made in accordance with 
30 TAC §§ 101.201 and 101.211 (relating to Emissions Event Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements, 
Scheduled Maintenance, Startup, and Shutdown Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements, Recordkeeping; and 
Operational Requirements). 

 
10. Compliance with rules.  Registration of a standard permit by a standard permit applicant constitutes an 

acknowledgment and agreement that the holder will comply with all rules, regulations, and orders of the commission 
issued in conformity with the TCAA and the conditions precedent to the claiming of the standard permit.  If more 
than one state or federal rule or regulation or permit condition is applicable, the most stringent limit or condition shall 
govern.  Acceptance includes consent to the entrance of commission employees and designated representatives of 
any air pollution control program having jurisdiction into the permitted premises at reasonable times to investigate 
conditions relating to the emission or concentration of air contaminants, including compliance with the standard 
permit. 

 
11. Distance Limitations.  Distance limitations, setbacks, and buffer zones.  Notwithstanding any requirement in any 

standard permit, if a standard permit for a facility requires a distance, setback, or buffer from other property or 
structures as a condition of the permit, the determination of whether the distance, setback, or buffer is satisfied shall 
be made on the basis of conditions existing at the earlier of: 

 
(A) The date new construction, expansion, or modification of a facility begins; or 

 
(B) The date any application or notice of intent is first filed with the commission to obtain approval for the 

construction or operation of the facility. 



 

 

Air Quality Standard Permit for Permanent Rock and Concrete Crushers 
Effective Date July 31, 2008 

 
This air quality standard permit authorizes rock and concrete crushing facilities that meet all of the conditions listed in 
sections (1), (2), and (3) of this standard permit.  It is the permit holder's responsibility to demonstrate compliance with all 
conditions of this permit upon request by the executive director or any air pollution control agency having jurisdiction. 
 
(1) General Requirements: 
 

(A) For the purposes of this standard permit, the following definitions apply. 
 

(i) A site is one or more contiguous or adjacent properties which are under common control of the 
same person (or persons under common control). 

 
(ii) Associated sources are sources of air emissions that are related to the rock or concrete crushing 

operation, that are not “facilities” as defined under Title 30 Texas Administrative Code (30 TAC) § 
116.10, General Definitions.  Associated sources include, but are not limited to, stockpiles and 
outdoor work areas.  Screens, belt conveyors, generator sets, and material storage or feed bins 
are considered to be facilities and are not associated sources. 

 
(iii) A residence is a structure primarily used as a permanent dwelling. 

 
(B) Except as provided in subsections (C) and (D) of this section, when crushing concrete, the concrete 

crushing facility shall be operated at least 440 yards from any building which was in use as a single or multi-
family residence, school, or place of worship at the time an application was filed.  The measurement of 
distance shall be taken from the point on the concrete crushing facility that is nearest to the residence, 
school, or place of worship toward the point on the building in use as a residence, school, or place of 
worship that is nearest the concrete crushing facility. 

 
(C) Subsection (B) does not apply to: 

 
(i) a concrete crushing facility at a location for which the distance requirements of subsection (B) were 

satisfied at the time an application was filed with the commission, provided that the authorization 
was granted and maintained, regardless of whether a single or multi-family residence, school, or 
place of worship is subsequently built or put to use within 440 yards of the facility; or 

 
(ii) structures occupied or used solely by the owner of the facility or the owner of the property upon 

which the facility is located. 
 

(D) Subsection (B) does not apply to a concrete crushing facility that: 
 

(i) is engaged in crushing concrete and other materials resulting from the demolition of a structure on 
that site and the concrete and other materials are being crushed primarily for use at that site; 

 
(ii) operates at that site during one period of no more than 180 calendar days; 

 
(iii) complies with all applicable conditions stated in commission rules, including operating conditions; 

and 
 

(iv) is not located in a county with a population of 2.4 million or more persons, or in a county adjacent 
to such a county. 

 
(E) For any owner or operator with a facility authorized by this standard permit, the TCEQ will not accept an 

application for authorization of a crushing facility under Texas Health and Safety Code (THSC) § 382.0518, 
Preconstruction Permit, located at the same site for a period of 12 months from the date of authorization. 

 
(F) An applicant for authorization of a rock crusher under THSC § 382.0518, is not eligible for this standard 

permit at the same site until 12 months after the application for authorization under § 382.0518 is withdrawn.  
Facilities already authorized by a permit under § 382.0518 are not eligible for this standard permit. 



 

 

 
(G) Applications for this standard permit shall be registered in accordance with 30 TAC § 116.611, Registration 

to Use a Standard Permit (including a current Form PI-1S, Crushing Plant Standard Permit Checklist and 
Table 17).  A compliance history review shall be performed by the executive director in accordance with 30 
TAC Chapter 60, Compliance History.  If a facility is determined to be a poor performer, as defined in 30 
TAC Chapter 60, a standard permit registration shall not be issued. 

 
(H) No owner or operator of a crushing facility shall begin construction and/or operation without obtaining written 

approval from the executive director (except for crushers in non operational storage for which construction 
has not commenced as considered under the Texas Clean Air Act).  Start of construction of any facility 
registered under this standard permit shall be no later than 18 months from the date of authorization.  
Construction progress and startup notification shall be made in accordance with 30 TAC § 116.115(b)(2), 
General and Special Conditions. 

 
(I) Applications for registration under this standard permit shall comply with 30 TAC § 116.614, Standard 

Permit Fees. 
 

(J) All affected facilities authorized by this standard permit must meet all applicable conditions of Title 40 Code 
of Federal Regulations (40 CFR) Part 60, Subpart A, General Provisions, and OOO, Standards of 
Performance for Nonmetallic Mineral Processing Plants. 

 
(K) Only crushing facilities that are processing nonmetallic minerals or a combination of nonmetallic minerals 

that are described in 40 (CFR) Part 60, Subpart OOO, shall be authorized by this standard permit.  
 

(L) This standard permit does not supersede the requirements of any other commission rule, including 30 TAC 
Chapter 101, Subchapter H, Division 3, Mass Emissions Cap and Trade Program; and 30 TAC Chapter 
117, Control of Air Pollution from Nitrogen Compounds. 

 
(M) Written records shall be kept for a rolling 24-month period and shall always remain on site.  These records 

shall be made available at the request of any personnel from the TCEQ or any air pollution control program 
having jurisdiction.  These written records shall contain the following: 

 
(i) daily hours of operation;  

 
(ii) the throughput per hour; 

 
(iii) road and work area cleaning and dust suppression logs; and 

 
(iv) stockpile dust suppression logs. 

 
(N) Crushing operations and related activities shall comply with applicable requirements of 30 TAC Chapter 

101, Subchapter F, Emission Events and Scheduled Maintenance, Startup, and Shutdown Activities. 
 

(O) Facilities which meet the conditions of this standard permit do not have to meet the emissions and distance 
limitations listed in 30 TAC § 116.610(a)(1), Applicability. 

 
(P) Maintenance emissions are not included in this permit and must be approved under separate authorization. 

Startup and shutdown emissions that exceed those expected during production operations must be 
approved under separate authorization. 

 
(Q) Owners or operators of facilities authorized by this standard permit are not eligible for any authorization in 

30 TAC Chapter 106, Subchapter E, Aggregate and Pavement  or 30 TAC § 106.512, Stationary Engines 
and Turbines, for a facility located at the same site as a rock crusher authorized by this standard permit. 

 
(R) Upon issuance of this standard permit, the TCEQ will no longer accept a registration for § 106.142, Rock 

Crushers. 
 
(2) Public Notice Requirements: 
 



 

 

(A) An application for authorization to construct and operate a rock crusher under this standard permit is not 
subject to the public notice requirements in 30 TAC Chapter 39 Subchapter H, Applicability and General 
Provisions, and Subchapter K, Public Notice of Air Quality Applications. 

 
(B) For authorization to use this standard permit, an applicant must publish notice under this section not later 

than the earlier of: 
 

(i) the 30th day after the date the applicant receives written notice from the executive director that the 
application is technically complete; or 

 
(ii) the 75th day after the date the executive director receives the application. 

 
(C) The applicant must publish notice at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the municipality in 

which the plant is proposed to be located or in the municipality nearest to the proposed location of the 
crusher.  If the elementary or middle school nearest to the proposed plant provides a bilingual education 
program as required by Subchapter B, Chapter 29, Texas Education Code, the applicant must also publish 
the notice at least once in an additional publication of general circulation in the municipality or county in 
which the plant is proposed to be located that is published in the language taught in the bilingual education 
program.  This requirement is waived if such a publication does not exist or if the publisher refuses to 
publish the notice. 

 
(D) The notice must include: 

 
(i) a brief description of the proposed location and nature of the proposed crusher; 

 
(ii) a description, including a telephone number, of the manner in which the executive director may be 

contacted for further information; 
 

(iii) a description, including a telephone number, of the manner in which the applicant may be contacted 
for further information; 

 
(iv) the location and hours of operation of the commission’s regional office at which a copy of the 

application is available for review and copying; and 
 

(v) a brief description of the public comment process, including the mailing address and deadline for 
filing written comments. 

 
(E) At the applicant’s expense, a sign or signs shall be placed at the site of the proposed facility declaring the 

filing of an application for a permit and stating the manner in which the commission may be contacted for 
further information.  Such signs shall be provided by the applicant and shall meet the following 
requirements:  

 
(i) signs shall consist of dark lettering on a white background and shall be no smaller than 18 inches 

by 28 inches;  
 

(ii) signs shall be headed by the words “PROPOSED AIR QUALITY PERMIT” in no less than two-inch 
boldface block-printed capital lettering; 

 
(iii) signs shall include the words “APPLICATION NUMBER” and the number of the permit application 

in no less than one-inch boldface block-printed capital lettering (more than one number may be 
included on the signs if the respective public comment periods coincide);  

 
(iv) signs shall include the words “for further information contact” in no less than 1/2-inch lettering;  

 
(v) signs shall include the words “Texas Commission on Environmental Quality,” and the address of 

the appropriate commission regional office in no less than one-inch boldface capital lettering and 
3/4-inch boldface lower case lettering; and  

 



 

 

(vi) signs shall include the phone number of the appropriate commission office in no less than two-inch 
boldface numbers.  

 
(F) The sign or signs must be in place by the date of publication of the newspaper notice required by subsection 

(2)(C) of this section and must remain in place and legible throughout the period of public comment provided 
for in subsection (2)(I) of this section.  

 
(G) Each sign placed at the site must be located within ten feet (ft.) of each (every) property line paralleling a 

street or other public thoroughfare.  Signs must be completely visible from the street and spaced at not 
more than 1,500-ft. intervals.  A minimum of one sign, but no more than three signs shall be required along 
any property line paralleling a public thoroughfare.  The commission may approve variations from these 
requirements if it is determined that alternative sign posting plans proposed by the applicant are more 
effective in providing notice to the public. 

 
(H) The alternate language sign posting requirements of this subsection are applicable whenever either the 

elementary school or the middle school located nearest to the facility or proposed facility provides a bilingual 
education program as required by Texas Education Code, Chapter 29, Subchapter B, and 19 TAC § 
89.1205(a) or if either school has waived out of such a required bilingual education program under the 
provisions of 19 TAC § 89.1205(g).  Schools not governed by the provisions of 19 TAC § 89.1205(a) shall 
not be considered in determining applicability of the requirements of this subsection. Each affected facility 
shall meet the following requirements.  

 
(i) The applicant shall post an additional sign in each alternate language in which the bilingual 

education program is taught.  If the nearest elementary or middle school has waived out of the 
requirements of 19 TAC § 89.1205(a) under 19 TAC § 89.1205(g), the alternate language signs 
shall be published in the alternate languages in which the bilingual education program would have 
been taught had the school not waived out of the bilingual education program. 

 
(ii) The alternate language signs shall be posted adjacent to each English language sign required in 

this section.  
 

(iii) The alternate language sign posting requirements of this subsection shall be satisfied without 
regard to whether alternate language notice is required under subsection (C) of this section. 

 
(iv) The alternate language signs shall meet all other requirements of this section. 

 
(I) The public comment period begins on the first date notice is published under subsection (2)(B) and extends 

no less than 30 days from the publication date. 
 

(J) Not later than the 30th day after the end of the public comment period, the executive director will approve 
or deny the application for authorization to use the standard permit. The executive director must base the 
decision on whether the application meets the requirements of this standard permit.  The executive director 
must consider all comments received during the public comment period in determining whether to approve 
the application.  If the executive director denies the application, the executive director must state the 
reasons for the denial and any modifications to the application necessary for the proposed plant to qualify 
for the authorization. 

 
(K) The executive director will issue a written response to any public comments received related to the issuance 

of an authorization to use the standard permit at the same time as or as soon as practicable after the 
executive director grants or denies the application.  Issuance of the response after the granting or denial of 
the application does not affect the validity of the executive director’s decision to grant or deny the 
application.  The executive director will: 

 
(i) mail the response to each person who filed a comment; and 

 
(ii) make the response available to the public. 

 
 
(3) Operational Requirements: 



 

 

 
(A) The primary crusher throughput shall not exceed 200 tons per hour. 

 
(B) The crusher and all associated facilities, including engines and/or generator sets, but not including 

associated sources, shall be located no less than 200 ft. from the nearest property line, as measured from 
the point on the facility nearest the property line.  

 
(C) The crusher and all associated facilities, including engines and/or generator sets, but not including 

associated sources, shall be located no less than 440 yards from any building which was in use as a single 
or multi-family residence, school, or place of worship, at the time an application was filed, as measured 
from the point on the facility nearest the residence, school, or place of worship to the point on the residence, 
school, or place of worship nearest the facility. 

 
(D) The crushing facilities (not including associated sources) operating under this standard permit shall be 

located at least 550 ft. from any other rock crusher, concrete crusher, concrete batch plant, or hot mix 
asphalt plant.  If this distance cannot be met, then the crusher shall not operate at the same time as the 
other rock crusher, concrete crusher, concrete batch plant, or hot mix asphalt plant.  Measurement shall be 
from the closest point on the rock crushing facility to the closest point on any other facility.  

 
(E) All associated sources, including but not limited to, roads (except for incidental traffic and the entrance and 

exit to the site), work areas, and stockpiles, shall be located at least 100 ft. from the property line. 
 

(F) The facilities (as defined in 30 TAC § 116.10(4)) authorized under this standard permit shall be limited to 
one primary crusher, one secondary crusher, one vibrating grizzly, two screens, any conveyors, and one 
internal combustion engine (or combination of engines) of no more than 1,000 total horsepower.  Equipment 
that is not a source of emissions does not require authorization. 

 
(G) All crushers, associated facilities, and associated sources (excluding stockpiles) shall not operate for more 

than an aggregate of 2,640 hours at the authorized site in any rolling 12 month period.  Once the operating 
hours (2,640 hours) for the site have been exhausted, the owner or operator shall not use a standard permit 
to operate another rock crusher on the site. 

 
(H) The rock crusher and associated facilities shall not operate from one hour after official sunset to one hour 

before official sunrise. 
 

(I) Each crusher shall be equipped with a runtime meter, which will be operating during crushing operations. 
 

(J) Permanently mounted spray bars shall be installed at the inlet and outlet of all crushers, at all shaker 
screens, and at all material transfer points and used as necessary to maintain compliance with all TCEQ 
rules and regulations.  

 
(K) Opacity of emissions from any transfer point on belt conveyors or any screen shall not exceed 10 percent 

and from any crusher shall not exceed 15 percent, averaged over a six-minute period, and according to 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Test Method (TM) 9. 

 
(L) Visible emissions from the crusher, associated facilities, associated sources, and in-plant roads associated 

with the plant shall not leave the property for a period exceeding 30 seconds in duration in any six-minute 
period as determined using EPA TM 22. 

 
(M) Dust emissions from all in-plant roads and active work areas that are associated with the operation of the 

crusher, associated facilities, and associated sources shall be minimized at all times by at least one of the 
following methods: 

 
(i) covered with a material such as, but not limited to, roofing shingles or tire chips (when used in 

combination with (ii) or (iii) of this subsection); 
 

(ii) treated with dust-suppressant chemicals; 
 

(iii) watered; or 



 

 

 
(iv) paved with a cohesive hard surface that is maintained intact and cleaned. 

 
(N) All stockpiles shall be sprinkled with water, dust-suppressant chemicals, or covered, as necessary, to 

minimize dust emissions. 
 

(O) Raw material and product stockpile heights shall not exceed 45 ft. 
 

(P) The crusher shall be equipped with a weigh hopper or scale belt to accurately determine the mass of 
material being crushed. 

 
(Q) The crusher may relocate on the site for which it has been authorized without reauthorization as long as it 

remains at least 440 yards from any residence, school, or place of worship that was in existence at the time 
of the move. 






	zzz 2020 0514 AGENDA PKT0000
	zzz SCS 2020 Blasting Permit Application - 04.02.20
	1.0 Cover Page
	2.0 Cover Letter
	3.0 Note to Reviewer
	4.0 Table of Contents
	5.0 Ordinance No. 2019-ORD015 Att A
	6.0 Att 1 - Cover
	6.1 Att 1 - Property ID Map
	7.0 Att 2 - Cover
	7.1 Att 2 - Property Survey
	8.0 Att 3 - Cover
	8.1 Att 3 - Description of Ops
	8.2 Att 3 - Blasting Operation
	9.0 Att 4 - Cover
	9.1 Att 4 - Designation LTR
	9.2 Att 4 - Buckley Cover LTR
	10.0 Att 5 - Cover
	10.1 Att 5 - Clearance LTR
	10.2 Att 5 - ATF License
	11.0 Att 6 - Cover
	11.1 Att 6 - Third Party Monitoring
	11.2 Att 6 - Monitor Locations
	11.3 Att 6 - IGS Quals
	11.4 Att 6 - IGS Quarries
	11.5 Att 6 - IGS Blasts
	11.6 Att 6 - Micromate Product Sheet
	11.7 Att 6 - Noise Monitor Product Sheet
	11.8 Att 6 - Dust Monitor
	12.0 Att 7 - Cover
	12.1 Att 7 - Compliance
	12.2 Att 7 - Limits of Blasting
	12.3 Att 7 - Berm Locations
	Layout1

	13.0 Att 8 - Cover
	14.0 Att 9 - Cover
	14.1 Att  9 - Property Values
	15.0 Att 10 - Cover
	15.1 Att 10 - COI
	16.0 Att 11 - Cover
	16.1 Att 11 - DRP
	16.2 Att 11 - Citizen Compliant Form
	17.0 Att 12 - Cover
	18.0 Att 13 - Cover
	18.1 Att 13 - Other Permits
	18.2 Att 13 TCEQ Air Permit
	Re: Air Quality Standard Permit for Permanent Rock and Concrete Crushers
	Standard Permit General Conditions
	Air Quality Standard Permit for Permanent Rock and Concrete Crushers

	18.3 Att 13 LCRA Water Permit


